
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Public Services Reform Policy and 
Accountability Committee

Agenda
Tuesday 16 October 2018 

7.00 pm
Courtyard Room - Hammersmith Town Hall

MEMBERSHIP

Administration Opposition
Councillor Sharon Holder (Chair)
Councillor Christabel Cooper
Councillor PJ Murphy
Councillor Guy Vincent

Councillor Dominic Stanton

CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott
Committee Co-ordinator
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 2063
E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk

Public Notice
Members of the press and public are welcome to attend this and all other Council 
meetings. Should exempt information need to be discussed the committee will pass 
a resolution requiring members of the press and public to leave.

The open part of this agenda is available for public inspection at the Town Hall and 
may be viewed on the Council’s website www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees

A loop system for hearing impairment is provided, along with disabled access to the 
building.

Rights of access to meetings are subject to the provisions of the Local Government 
Act 1972 and the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985.

Date Issued: 16 October 2018

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Public Services Reform Policy and 
Accountability Committee

Agenda
16 October 2018

Item Pages

1.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 4 - 9

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent.

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken. 

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee.

4.  PROGRESS UPDATE ON WORK FOLLOWING THE DISABLED 
PEOPLE'S COMMISSION REPORT 

10 - 18

This report sets out the progress being made with work following the 
report of the Disabled People’s Commission that was approved by 
Cabinet on 4th December 2017.

5.  MOVING ON UPDATES 
The Directors for Publics Services Reform, Social Care, and Children’s 
Services will provide verbal updates on the ‘Moving On’ programme.



6.  BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 
UPDATE 

19 - 25

This report provides an update on the Corporate Business Intelligence 
and Management Information functions which sit together within Public 
Services Reform.

7.  HR UPDATE - OUR PEOPLE STRATEGY AND IMPLEMENTATION 
OF A NEW HR AND PAYROLL SYSTEM 

26 - 40

This report gives an overview of the ‘Our People’ strategy, key 
workforce areas of interest, and the implementation of the replacement 
to the BT Agresso HR and payroll system.



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

.
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Public Services Reform 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee
Minutes

Monday 25 June 2018

PRESENT

Committee members: Councillors Sharon Holder (Chair), Christabel Cooper, 
Guy Vincent and Dominic Stanton

Officers: Lisa Redfern (Director for Social Care and Acting Director of Public 
Services Reform), Mike Boyle (Interim Director of Public Services Reform), Sarah 
Thomas, Simon Davis, Anita Parkin

Other Councillors: Councillors Adam Connell (Cabinet Member for Public Services 
Reform), Lucy Richardson and Bora Kwon

1. APPOINTMENT OF A VICE CHAIR 

RESOLVED
Councillor Dominic Stanton was appointed Vice Chair for the 2018-19 Municipal 
Year.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor PJ Murphy.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

4. AN INTRODUCTION TO SCRUTINY IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 

This item was presented for information only.

5. AN INTRODUCTION TO THE PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM DEPARTMENT 

Lisa Redfern, Director for Social Care and Acting Director of Public Services Reform, 
addressed the Committee and gave an introduction to the newly formed Public 
Services Reform department. She informed the Committee that the department 
brought together the Council’s commissioning, transformation, commercial, strategy 
and change management capability with the public health service offer. At the heart 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

of this reorganisation was a commitment to whole system reform which will equip the 
Council to fundamentally rethink how it serves and supports residents.

The department brought together strategic commissioners, who oversee the 
procurement of social care services for adults and children and family support 
services, along with the commissioning of public health services. It also incorporates 
the Policy & Strategy team, which oversees the development of corporate policy and 
the co-ordination of strategic initiatives, the Business Intelligence team, which 
provides insight and analytics, the Community Investment team, which oversees the 
allocation of the third sector grants fund, and the Commercial Management team, 
which oversees corporate procurement and contract management.

Lisa Redfern then presented Public Service Reform’s service mission:

“We will drive and deliver system reform, disrupt the status quo and stimulate a 
creative renaissance in local approaches to public service. We will passionately 
focus on our collective potential to excel - through reform, commercial enterprise and 
system innovations - to benefit all those who we serve and support, and achieve 
public value.”

Lisa Redfern invited senior officers in the department to give an overview of their 
service areas and the key priorities and challenges for 2018-19.

Commercial Management – Simon Davis

Service areas covered:
 Delivery Hub
 Commercial Services
 Asset Management
 Commercial Programme
 Corporate Cost Reduction

Simon Davis, Assistant Director for Contracts and Procurement, explained that his 
service area covered how the Council operated commercially and how it engaged 
with the markets. The Council had a contracts portfolio of around £250m and it was 
vital that it was being managed well – both to ensure that the Council was getting 
value for money and that the services delivered for residents. He noted that one of 
his key roles was to look at how the Council could improve its contract management. 
With such a large portfolio, there were opportunities for efficiencies. The service had 
a savings target of £1.5m from contracts in the first year and further savings in 
ongoing years. The two biggest contracts under the service’s remit were the 
Facilities Management contract with Amey and the Waste Management contact with 
Serco.

Councillor Christabel Cooper asked if Simon’s team worked closely with the 
Business Intelligence (BI) team on performance data and management information. 
Simon Davies replied that data quality for some of the contracts was not up to 
scratch. Going forward the team were looking to use BI more effectively – particularly 
for contracts that required regular monitoring of large amounts of data.

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Sarah Thomas, Assistant Director – Public Services Reform, added that officers had 
used Moving On (the Council’s disaggregation from the shared service 
arrangements with Westminster and Kensington & Chelsea) as an opportunity to 
look at the way services interacted. BI wasn’t being used to its full potential but now 
officers were bringing it into commissioning from the start of the process.

The Chair, Councillor Sharon Holder, asked what the key challenges were in 
Commercial Services. Simon Davis highlighted the following two areas:

 Renegotiation of the Facilities Management contract due to poor performance.
 A lack of improvement or development of the Waste Management contract – 

there were a number of recurring complaints (e.g. missed collections) that 
should have been picked up and resolved.

Councillor Guy Vincent asked what the budget and staffing numbers were for the 
department. Officers noted that there were currently just under 150 staff working in 
PSR and the staffing budget was around £5.6m – though there was a significant 
vacancy factor and if all posts were filled the staffing budget would be £7m. The 
department was responsible for 450 contracts, varying from relatively small to the 
large Waste Management and Facilities Management contracts. The total value of 
those contracts was around £300m. Over the next four years, officers would need to 
find savings of around £60m.

Councillor Vincent asked if it was anticipated that PSR would provide ‘whole system 
reform’ as a service to other Councils to generate income. Lisa Redfern said it was, 
part of the service’s function was providing management consultancy to other 
authorities.

Councillor Vincent asked for an example of whole system reform in H&F. Sarah 
Thomas highlighted the Family Support Service, a Local Authority Trading Company 
(LATC) delivering services providing proactive, integrated and innovative 
preventative support to families most in need that went live on 1 April 2018. Family 
Support aimed to have a positive long-term impact on families’ futures, reduce 
demand for statutory care services over the next ten years, and operate as a 
financially sustainable organisation. The LATC structure enabled the organisation to 
be more flexible and efficient than a traditional Council service and it opened-up 
more innovative funding opportunities. 

Adult Social Care – Home Care, Reablement and Advocacy – Jon Lillistone

Service areas covered:
 Advocacy and IAG Befriending
 Outreach, Reablement and Home Care Supported Accommodation
 BCF/S75 Partnerships with Health

NOTE: Jon Lillistone was unable to attend the meeting so Mike Boyle and Simon 
Davis presented his service area

Mike Boyle noted that these areas involved working with the most vulnerable people 
in the borough. There were two key areas – the recommissioning of mental health 
provision and a new Home Care contract for 2020 and beyond. Regarding mental 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

health provision – currently H&F had a disproportionately high number of mental 
health placements outside the borough. To resolve this, the Council would need to 
rethink its housing and employment offer. The recommission of the Home Care 
contract in 2020 presented a number of opportunities – giving people real choice and 
control and better minimum guarantees of quality.

Public Health - Anita Parkin

Service areas covered:
 Strategic oversight of Public Health
 Public Health partnership development

Anita Parkin, Director of Public Health, introduced herself to the Committee and gave 
an overview of the Public Health function. She noted that Public Health had been a 
shared service in the past but became sovereign from 1 April 2018. The key priorities 
for the service were interventions on obesity, mental health, substance misuse, and 
dementia – as well as joining up with departments across the Council to ensure they 
were considering health interventions in their work. Anita had only been in post for a 
few weeks but work had started on the vision and strategy for the service. The Chair, 
Councillor Sharon Holder, requested a list of the 10 most important Public Health 
issues.

ACTION: Anita Parkin

Children’s Services – Family Support, Digital, Place Shaping – Sarah Thomas

Service areas covered:
 Family Support Service
 Travel Care
 School Meals and Meals on Wheels
 Digital Efficiency
 Place Shaping
 Ed City & On Side

Sarah Thomas, Assistant Director – Public Services Reform, gave an overview of 
her main services areas:

The Family Support Service delivers universal and targeted services to children 
and families - from new-borns up to young adults with SEND to the age of 25. This 
encompassed Children’s Centres and all the services within – e.g. breastfeeding 
classes for new mothers, healthy eating advice for families, play groups and many 
more.

The SEN Travel Care service was responsible for getting children with special 
needs and disabilities to and from school and other educational opportunities. This 
service had seen huge improvements over the past few years but there were plans 
to develop it further. Next steps included travel assistance training and work to 
improve young people’s independence.

School Meals and Meals on Wheels – Sarah Thomas noted that officers had 
started to look at food provision in the round – bringing together school meals, meals 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

on wheels, food poverty, obesity, and H&F’s food banks. Economic development had 
been doing some work with Nourish. There were a number of opportunities 
presented by a more holistic approach to this area.

Digital Efficiency involved the use of automation and AI to allow staff to spend less 
time processing forms and data and more time with residents face-to-face. 
Automation has been used for a while in the Revenues and Benefits team where it 
had been working well. Going forward officers were keen to look at automation in a 
social care context. There were real opportunities there to free up social workers to 
spend more time with families and less time in front of their computers. Officers had 
identified the Merlin process as a possible trial area.

Place Shaping brought together community engagement, the resident commissions, 
the new ward panels, and using them effectively to start affecting the social change 
the community wanted.

Councillor Guy Vincent asked how independent the Family Support Service was (as 
it was an LATC), how the governance had been set up, and if it was accountable to 
the Council. Sarah Thomas explained that it was a separate legal entity that the 
Council commissioned to deliver services. The Council, at present, was the sole 
shareholder, and was committed to work closely with the service to help it thrive.

Councillor Vincent noted that officers had mentioned the Family Support Service 
moving to a Joint Venture in time – and asked what kind of partners were being 
considered? (Charities, businesses etc.). Sarah Thomas said the service would be 
procuring a strategic joint venture company and gave Barnardos and CLCH as 
examples of the types of organisations that could be involved. She also noted that 
there could be more than one partner.

Councillor Vincent asked if the Family Support Service had plans to sell its services 
to third parties at any stage. Sarah Thomas said she did expect them to deliver other 
services on behalf of other councils and health partners.

Councillor Christabel Cooper asked what the advantages of the Family Support 
Service being an arms-length vehicle were. Sarah Thomas replied that the external 
vehicle had allowed a number of related contracts to be rationalised. Previously quite 
separate services had been brought together resulting in better outcomes for 
families. In terms of contract monitoring, having a single provider meant monitoring 
one contract instead of 20 separate ones.

Assistive Technology, Commercial Development and Inspection Readiness – 
Sarah Bright

Service areas covered:
 Assistive Technology
 Mental Health Prevention
 Health and Education Promotion
 Inspection Readiness

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Inspection Readiness related to the statutory inspections of Children’s Services, 
SEND, and Adult Social Care by both Ofsted and the CQC. PSR’s role was ensuring 
that self-evaluation frameworks were complete, improvement plans were in place, 
data and management information was up to date and informing management 
decisions etc.

Ethical Debt – PSR was developing a strategy around ethical debt management 
and officers were looking at a pilot on collecting parking debt.

Assistive Technology referred to technologies for older people’s homes to allow 
vulnerable people to stay in their homes. The technologies included GPS tags, 
sensors to detect falls, reminders to take medications etc.

VAWG and Domestic Abuse Strategy – Domestic abuse was the biggest single 
factor that led to children being put on the child protection register. To tackle this 
problem officers were working across a number of key Council departments 
including Children’s Services, Housing, and Commuting Safety.

The Chair, Councillor Sharon Holder, thanked officers for their presentations. She 
noted that the Committee would focus on service provision - outcomes and resident 
satisfaction were the key measures of success. She said she would like to 
encourage greater resident participation at these meetings and suggested resident 
action groups be invited regularly to allow them to present their ideas, feedback, and 
challenges.

6. WORK PROGRAMMING 2018/19 

This item was noted.

Meeting started: 7.00 pm
Meeting ended: 8.30 pm

Chair

Contact officer: David Abbott
Scrutiny Manager
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 2063
E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk

Page 9



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham

PUBLIC SERVICE REFORM POLICY & 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE

16 October 2018

PROGRESS UPDATE ON WORK FOLLOWING THE DISABLED PEOPLE’S 
COMMISSION REPORT

Report of the Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care – Councillor 
Ben Coleman

Open Report

Classification: For Policy and Accountability Review and Comment
Key Decision: No

Consultation: None

Wards Affected: None

Accountable Director: Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director of Social Care and Public 
Service Reform

Report Authors: Peter Smith, Head of 
Policy & Strategy & Kevin Caulfield, 
Policy & Strategy Officer

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 8753 2206
E-mail: peter.smith@lbhf.gov.uk 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. This report sets out the progress being made with work following the report of 
the Disabled People’s Commission. The report was approved by Cabinet on 
4th December 2017.

1.2. The next steps are to set up a working together (Co-production) 
implementation group which will be the group that oversees the 
implementation of the report’s 8 recommendations. The group will be made up 
of Disabled residents, councillors, and staff and be mindful of the agreed 
measures of success. It will develop a co-produced work plan to achieve the 
Council’s commitment to working with Disabled residents to remove barriers 
and making Hammersmith & Fulham a more inclusive borough in which to live 
and work. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4

mailto:peter.smith@lbhf.gov.uk


2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1. That the Committee notes the progress made in the delivery of the work 
following the Disabled People’s Commission’s report and its intentions to co-
produce a delivery plan to realise the 8 recommendations. 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION

3.1. The report is for discussion not for decision.

4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES 

4.1. The vision of the Hammersmith & Fulham Disabled People’s Commission is to 
set in place a new way of doing things; that sees Disabled residents, 
councillors, council officers and other organisations in the borough working 
together to build a culture that values and respects the rights of Disabled 
people living in Hammersmith & Fulham, where "Nothing About Disabled 
People Without Disabled People" is at the heart of policy development and 
service design in this unique and diverse borough.

4.2. A new Hammersmith & Fulham Co-production implementation group (HFCIG) 
will provide the leadership that will drive the implementation of the report’s 8 
recommendations and the vision.

4.3. The HFCIG will be the means to bring Disabled residents and the Council 
together to make co-production happen by developing and steering an action 
plan for delivery and providing information, advice and support as the 
recommendations are turned into the day to day practice of the Council. A 
new senior manager whose job title is Strategic Lead Co-Production – 
“Nothing About Disabled People without Disabled People”. will be recruited 
and appointed to the Public Services Reform Department (PSR) whose work 
will include the creation of a co-production framework and implementing 
HFCIG’s delivery plan that will be delivered across the council. 

Town Hall refurbishment

4.4. Disabled residents have been very involved, since December 2017, in 
detailed work developing the Town Hall refurbishment plans and the planning 
application was submitted in April 2018. As a result of working together with 
Disabled residents, an external Disabled person as an access consultant, 
along with architects, landscapers, town planners, housing and regeneration 
staff, the plans include a high level of inclusive design in relation to what we 
must work towards within the existing building.

4.5. Rogers, Stirk, Harbour and Partners architects report that this has been an 
excellent experience working with residents, saving time later in the process 
and probably cost. The architects are creating a co-produced report on the 
model that Hammersmith and Fulham has used in working with residents and 
on the process followed. They describe it as their most meaningful experience 
of working with Disabled residents on a development. There is a real 

Page 11



excitement seeing residents, external and internal professionals all in the 
room together making suggestions and decisions. Importantly residents were 
paid for their work and contribution.

4.6. Disabled resident Jane Wilmot said: “Working together meant we were able to 
raise issues early so the design team had time to respond with robust 
solutions. We strongly recommend this way of working because not only can it 
save time and money but Disabled people were an integral part of creating a 
development that everyone will be able to use.”

4.7. Architect Mark Rintoul described the ‘Co-production work’ as an ‘extremely 
beneficial collaboration’ that helped the scheme ‘exceed building regulations’ 
in relation to accessibility and inclusive design.

Disabled People’s Housing Strategy

4.8. The Disabled People’s Housing Strategy is in draft form. It was discussed at 
Economy, Housing & the Arts PAC in September 2018 and is due to return to 
that Committee once PAC amendments have been included. Several 
Disabled residents have been involved in steering the content of the strategy, 
since Spring 2017, and Disabled residents have been involved in ‘focus 
groups’ listening to residents’ experiences. The Council’s Housing 
Partnerships and Strategy Manager said: 

“I would say the resident involvement and involvement of the DPC members 
has been invaluable to the creation of the strategy. Not only has it led us to 
propose new ways of engaging and monitoring but also practical fixes to some 
issues that are often overlooked, such as flow diagrams of processes for 
things like adaptions and Disabled Facilities Grant”. 

4.9 The residents’ group recommend a dedicated programme manager and a 
steering group with residents be put in place to take this ambitious strategy 
forward. 

Independent Living Strategy

4.10 The DPC report recommends that the Council, as one of its priorities, 
develops an Independent Living Strategy, as defined by Disabled people. The 
Independent Living Strategy will cover all Disabled people of all ages.

4.11 ‘Independent Living’ is an important part of the UN Convention on the Rights 
of Persons with Disabilities, formally adopted by the Council as part of the 
DPC recommendations, and it covers Disabled people of all ages. Article 19 
says that disabled people should have choices equal to others to live in the 
community, including choice and control over things like who they live with 
and where.

4.12 The Council’s Adult Social Care (ASC) department commissioned RUILS (a 
Richmond- based Disabled People’s Organisation) to carry out a review of 
direct payment support in the Borough. The RUILS report has 10 

Page 12



recommendations which also chime with the DPC’s recommendations. ASC 
has recruited a programme officer to take the recommendations forward. This 
work will benefit from having the Co-production implementation group in 
place. An event to launch the report and bring residents together to engage in 
Co-Production took place on 24th September 2018, addressed by Councillor 
Coleman, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care.

4.13 The department is about to start work with Disabled residents on barriers to 
inclusion for residents with sensory impairments. DPC Commissioners were 
involved in meetings in 2017 regarding developing new strategies to move on 
from the existing strategies that were not co-produced. Conversation events 
with Disabled residents are planned for the autumn of 2018. 

Voting campaign

4.14 Disabled residents were involved in working with the Council’s Electoral 
Services team to develop a poster/ leaflet campaign highlighting Disabled 
residents’ right to vote. The campaign was launched in April 2018 and saw 
posters displayed across the borough. 

5. ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS 

Structure

5.1. HFCIG is to be co-chaired by a Disabled resident and a councillor and it will 
consist of 8-10 members, including five Disabled residents. Any smaller 
number of members would reduce the diversity of the group and any larger 
number would make it more difficult to manage meetings and decision-making 
processes. Officer representation may need to vary in accordance with the 
focus of specific Co-production work streams at any given time.

5.2. All appointed resident members should self-identify as Disabled people and 
be able to represent a wide age range of residents. The HFCIG should aim to 
ensure that representation in Co-production work includes Disabled residents 
across impairment groups and residents who face other forms of 
discrimination in their day to day lives.

Timescale

5.3. Recruitment to the HFCIG is taking place at the end of October 2018 and it is 
expected that the first meeting will take place in November 2018. A first 
independent evaluation of the CIG’s work will take place one year on from its 
formation. Recruitment of the senior co-production officer in PSR will start in 
October 2018. 

6. CONSULTATION

6.1. Extensive consultation has taken place with Disabled people across the 
borough as part of the 18 month long programme of work by the Disabled 
People’s Commission. 

Page 13



6.2. Consultation has taken place with Council departments, via the Strategic 
Leadership Team, on the proposals for the implementation of the 
Commission’s recommendations on co-production.

7. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1. The implementation of the recommendations of the DPC will have positive 
impacts for Disabled people. It is not anticipated that there will be any 
negative impacts on any other groups with protected characterisitics, under 
the terms of the Equality Act 2010. 

7.2. Implications completed by Peter Smith, Head of Policy & Strategy, tel. 020 
8753 2206.

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1. There are no legal implications arising from this report.

8.2. Implications completed by Shally Kaur, Chief Solicitor, tel. 020 8753 4044.

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1. The recruitment of the lead officer will be contained within the PSR staffing 
budget.
 

9.2. Implications completed by: Danielle Wragg, Finance Business Partner, 020 
8753 4287

10. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS

10.1. There will be no implications for local businesses.

10.2. Implications completed by: Albena Karameros, Economic Development Team, 
tel. 07739 316 957.

11. COMMERCIAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1. There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

11.2. Any future procurement exercises resulting from following the Disabled 
People’s Commission’s report and its intentions to co-produce a delivery plan 
to realise the 8 recommendations, should be conducted in accordance with 
the Council’s Contracts Standing Orders (CSOs) and the Public Contracts 
Regulations (PCR) 2015.

11.3. Implications completed by: Andra Ulianov, Procurement Consultant, tel. 020 
8753 2284.

Page 14



12. IT IMPLICATIONS 

12.1. If any sensitive personal information is recorded as part of this engagement it 
will need to be managed in line with the data protection principles of the Data 
Protection Act 2018.

12.2. If any sensitive data is held about individuals then the service must complete 
an Information Sharing Agreement and Privacy Impact Assessment to identify 
how the data being gathered will be shared either internally or with relevant 
third parties, and this will be reviewed by the Information Management Team.

12.3. Information on our data protection responsibilities are available on the 
Intranet, and if needed further help is available from the Information 
Management Team. 

12.4. Implications completed by: Veronica Barella, Chief Information Officer, tel 020 
8753 2927.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

13.1. The work of the Commission with the Council is ground-breaking and is 
bringing about a change in the design and setting up of Council services. 
Disability awareness is very important when it comes to breaking stereotypes 
and overcoming the risk of preconceptions regarding disabilities. The 
recommendations presented here demonstrate the commitment of the Council 
to the Commission and its objectives. Assurance and overview of the 
implementation of the report’s 8 recommendations will be undertaken by the 
Hammersmith & Fulham Co-Production implementation group (HFCIG). 

13.2. Implications verified by: Michael Sloniowski Risk Manager telephone 020 
8753 2587.

14. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT

None.

Page 15



APPENDIX 1

Disabled Peoples’ Commission report - recommendations with measures of 
success

Recommendations Measure of success
(i) The articles of the UNCRPD and 
the social model of disability are being 
used as the foundation for the 
development of all policy with Disabled 
residents and are clearly reflected in 
council policies. 
(ii) The Council work plan includes 
work streams to embed a human 
rights and social model approach.
(iii) Co-production principles and 
practice are included in all Council 
work, for example departmental 
business plans, project review 
processes, e-learning, changes to 
publicity, staff recruitment, training, 
professional development, and 
management.

Creating a Co-Production culture 

Recommendation 1: The Council to 
implement a human rights approach to its 
policy and service development, using 
the UN Convention on the Rights of 
Persons with Disabilities (UNCRPD) as 
the framework for change. 

(iv) Co-produced review of all 
monitoring and evaluation 
mechanisms and internal reporting 
processes, e.g. independent review by 
Internal Audit and review and 
challenge by Policy and Accountability 
Committees, supported by an external 
peer review to maximise Co-
production learning and improvement 
processes. 
(i) The development of Co-production 
with Disabled residents across all the 
Council’s work has been practically 
resourced and implemented.
(ii) Establish a Co-production group of 
Disabled residents who work with the 
strategic director to turn the 
recommendations of this report into 
reality.

Recommendation 2: The Council adopts 
and implements a policy which commits 
the Council to working in Co-production 
with Disabled residents.

(iii) The hub has a strategic director 
who oversees the setting up and 
implementation of the Co-production 
strategy and other recommendations 
in this report.

Page 16



Recommendation 3: 
The Council develops and implements an 
accessible communication strategy that 
promotes the development of Co-
production across the borough. 

Increased awareness of Co-production 
demonstrating solutions to Disabled 
people’s barriers locally.

(i) Changes in policy and services can 
be directly traced back to ideas 
initiated by Disabled residents through 
co-produced work.

Training and development

Recommendation 4:
The Council, with the Co-production Hub, 
develops a strategy and resources its 
implementation to skill up and build the 
capacity of Disabled residents, local 
DPOs, staff and Councillors to participate 
in the Co-production of policy and service 
development. 

(ii) Disabled residents, local DPOs and 
the Council report and evidence 
increased levels of engagement in 
council activity and decision making.

(i) Evidence that a co-produced quality 
assurance and social value framework 
is produced and being implemented by 
commissioning and procurement.
(ii) Evidence the new quality 
assurance and social and economic 
value framework is changing the 
commissioning behaviour and/or 
outcomes from Council contracts.
(iii) Co-produced service specifications 
for key priority services for Disabled 
residents are developed and 
implemented through the Council’s 
grants, commissioning, and 
procurement processes. 
(iv) Contracts are developed and 
awarded that reflect co-produced 
specifications. 

Service design and commissioning

Recommendation 5: The Council to co-
produce a quality assurance and social 
and economic value framework, which 
will define the values, behaviours and 
characteristics of all service providers 
and organisations funded or 
commissioned by the Council.

(v) Review with Disabled residents 
existing contracts that are viewed by 
Disabled residents as creating 
barriers.

Resourcing Co-production

Recommendation 6: Council to analyse 
existing financial expenditure and 
resources on all Co-production 

(i) A co-produced financial audit has 
been carried out on existing financial 
expenditure and other resources on all 
Co-production, engagement, and 
consultation activities, including 
Resident Satisfaction Surveys with 

Page 17



Disabled residents1 across the council, 
health, and community sectors to 
ascertain levels of funding for 
consultation and engagement. 
Co-production budgets should be 
reflected in the Council’s medium term 
financial strategy (MTFS).

engagement with Disabled residents to 
identify current expenditure and then 
reconfigure to develop a borough wide 
Co-production budget. 
 

(ii) The Co-production hub looks at the 
use of available resources to enable 
Disabled residents to lead on decision 
making. 
Resources will need to include staffing 
of sufficient seniority to co-lead the 
development and embedding of the 
Hub and its work across Council 
departments.
(i) A long term DPO funding strategy is 
agreed with DPOs and implemented 
by the Council.
(ii) DPOs are an effective, independent 
and authentic voice of local Disabled 
residents, as well as effective 
providers of essential peer-run 
services.
(iii) The Council commissions DPOs to 
inform Disabled residents of their 
rights and assists Disabled residents 
to uphold and exercise their rights. 

Review and funding of Disabled 
People’s Organisations (DPOs) 

Recommendation 7: Recognising the 
unique role, values, and authentic voice 
of Hammersmith & Fulham Disabled 
People’s Organisations (DPOs) and their 
network, the Council works with them to 
identify and agree a long-term funding 
strategy, which will ensure that local 
Disabled residents’ rights are upheld, 
inclusion and equality advanced and that 
Disabled residents can lead on Co-
production.
 

(iv) Co-production activities will show 
that Disabled residents are leading on 
ideas and all elements of policy 
making and service development. 
(i) Hammersmith and Fulham Council 
can evidence the impact of a Co-
produced approach to decision making 
and policy development with local 
Disabled residents; so the experience 
of resident led Co-production can 
benefit other communities both locally 
and nationally.

Independent monitoring and 
evaluation

Recommendation 8: Carry out robust 
monitoring and evaluation of the 
implementation of the recommendations 
and associated Co-production work to 
evidence the impact and share learning 
within and beyond Hammersmith and 
Fulham. 

(ii) Learning is disseminated at a 
regional and national level with 
relevant policymakers and government 
to demonstrate what can be achieved.

1 This includes services for people with impairments and long-term conditions and special educational needs

Page 18



1 | P a g e

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham

PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM 
POLICY AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

COMMITTEE

16th October 2018
BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION UPDATE  

Report of the Director of Social Care and Public Services Reform  

Open Report 

Classification: For information 
Key Decision: No 

Wards Affected: 
All 

Accountable Director: Director of Social Care and Public Services Reform  

Report Author: 
Jonathan Skaife, Strategic Commissioner 

Contact Details: 
jonathan.skaife@lbhf.gov.uk 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



2 | P a g e

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This paper has been drafted for Public Services Reform Public Accountability Committee. It 

provides an overview of the Corporate Business Intelligence and Management Information functions 

which sit together within the Public Services Reform Directorate. This is an information paper that 

is intended to be an introduction to what the services do. 

 1.2. Whilst the Management Information and Business Intelligence functions have often been 

grouped together and described collectively as Business Intelligence, they are currently two quite 

distinct functions with distinct roles and benefits to Hammersmith and Fulham Council. 

1.3. The term Business Intelligence refers to technologies, applications and practices for the 

collection, integration, analysis, and presentation of business information. The purpose of Business 

Intelligence is to support better business decision making. At Hammersmith and Fulham Council the 

Business Intelligence element of the team is an engine for innovation and improvement in the use 

of technology, applications, and practices to improve council wide performance and in turn, 

outcomes for residents. 

1.4. Management Information refers to  data or statistics collected and used to measure performance 

in given areas of a business. At Hammersmith and Fulham Council this includes key data and 

statistics that are used by managers to enable decision making and performance monitoring, but 

also reports that enable the Council to report performance of statutory and non- statutory services 

to key stakeholders, including regulatory bodies. 

1.5. The paper provides an overview of the functions including the history, structure, capabilities

and work plan which helps give an idea of the functions ‘as was’, as well an overview of the ‘as is’.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. The Committee is requested to review and comment on the contents of the report. 

3. BACKGROUND 

History – ‘as was’
3.1. This section starts by offering the ‘as was’ of both Business Intelligence and Management 

Information.

3.2. Historically, a mixed model was in place made up of centralised corporate resource and shared 

services teams located across the 3 Councils. Distinct teams sat in Children’s, Adults and Public 

Health working across both Hammersmith and Fulham and the Bi-Borough, largely focused on 

BI team and work plan overview

Page 20



3 | P a g e

Management Information. In addition to these shared teams, a small Hammersmith and Fulham 

Business Intelligence staff team worked uniquely on Hammersmith and Fulham priorities delivering 

products to various departments including Corporate Services, Revenue & Benefits, Community 

Safety, Housing Solutions, Environmental Health, and Economic Development.  

3.3. In 2016 there was investment in the technology used by Hammersmith and Fulham’s Business 

Intelligence service to enable the development of more effective products. Alongside internal 

benefits realisation, an aspiration was set to commoditise  Business Intelligence products for sale 

to other UK councils

3.4. In June 2018, the “Moving On” process enabled some officers who had been working in the 

shared arrangements in Children’s, Adult Social Care, and Public Health to be disaggregated and 

repositioned in Public Services Reform alongside the existing core Business Intelligence team. 

Team overview – the ‘as is’
3.5.  The team collectively described as Business Intelligence now sits in Public Services Reform 

with officers allocated between Business Intelligence and Management Information. Whilst it is one 

team, the Business Intelligence and Management Information functions have distinct purposes, 

skills, responsibilities, and commitments (see table below).

3.6. The table below provides a summary of the Management Information and Business Intelligence 

functions responsibilities, duties and skills. 

Management Information
Responsibilities & duties Skills 
(Where not automated)

 Data Requests & Freedom of 
Information Requests

 Running reports
 Performance Monitoring Reports
 Statutory Returns
 Management Information Reports
 Collation of data
 Descriptive analysis
 Data Quality
 Profiles – Areas, Schools etc.

 Immediate data analysis
 Excel Skills
 Running Reports
 Basic data matching skills
 Business Knowledge
 Basic report & Dashboard 

development

Business Intelligence Team
Responsibilities & duties Skills 

 Development of Business 
Intelligence Products within 
Business Intelligence 
infrastructure

 Data matching, automation, and 
predictive modelling 

 Advanced data analysis skills
 Expert data management & 

matching skills
 Programming
 High technical skills
 Advanced Report & Dashboard 

development
 Infrastructure skills

Page 21



4 | P a g e

 Automation of Management 
Information and performance 
reports

 Automation of Statutory Returns
 Development and maintenance of 

Business Intelligence 
infrastructure (120 million rows of 
data being processed daily)

 New product development

3.7.   The majority of staff are currently allocated to the production of Management Information, 

largely for the Service Directorates. Only a small team of staff are committed to Business Intelligence 

activity. 

3.8. Despite the small number of Business Intelligence staff, the service has successfully delivered 

financial benefits for Hammersmith and Fulham Council, achieved by delivering products that both 

realise more income from taxes, fees and charges and avoid costs. Examples include Single Person 

Discount, Empty Properties, and Rent Arrears, all of which help identify taxes, fees or charges in 

these areas which are owed to the council but are not being realised. 

3.9. Work is underway with Service Directorates with the following teams:

o Community Safety

o Revenues and Benefits 

o Environmental Health

o Fraud

o Housing Solutions 

o Children’s Services 

o Adult Social Care

o Public Health.

3.10. Council wide priority assignments are also undertaken. For example, the Hammersmith and 

Fulham census.  

3.11. There is also another, but entirely separate team, also called ‘Business Intelligence’ sitting 

within the Housing department and working exclusively on Housing priorities. The ‘BI Housing 

team’ are not in scope for this report.  

Business Intelligence Capabilities – the ‘as is’
3.12. The BI team possess a range of capabilities summarised below: 

 A robust BI infrastructure with great technical capabilities:
o Platform for more advanced products – Machine Learning & Bots
o Platform for securely sharing data with partners and external customers
o Platform for automation
o Huge asset for Council – 120 million rows automatically processed every night feeding 

dashboard products across organisation. Infrastructure not complete yet still increasing 
in size and capabilities.
   Highly technical and specialist resource within the team with a high level of 

analytical skill:

Page 22



5 | P a g e

o Ability to automate and 
develop new products

o Police vetted and access 
to Police data

o Highly performing 
analytical products such 
as Machine Learning (AI) 

  The team provide a range of functions:
o Performance 

Management
o Spatial Mapping & 

Analysis
o Data Matching
o Data Analysis
o Behavioural Insights & 

Nudge

o Evaluation & Control 
Testing

o Predictive modelling & 
Forecasting

o Automation and RPA
o Survey Design, 

Implementation & 
Analysis.

o Qualitative Techniques & 
Analytics

o Machine Learning (AI)
o Data Design & 

Management
o Customer Segmentation

  The teams’ capabilities enable a range of benefits
o Drive efficiencies and 

savings 
o New ways of working 

implemented in service
o Collaboration agile way 

of working

o Apply techniques and 
ideas from one service 
area to another

o Realise the benefit of 
cross departmental 
intelligence

 There are advantages with the in-house team that are not readily available from other 
BI providers

o Core BI Service – 
knowledge of 
organisation and 
Borough

o Experience of delivering 
the wide range of 
varying work within local 
government

o Experience of delivering 
products to other councils

o Experience and learning 
gained from initial 
commercial venture

o Incorporation of practices 
from the technology and 
private sector

Business Intelligence and Management Information work segmentation – the ‘as is’ 

3.13.  Collectively the teams output can be categorised into three work groups: Statutory work, 

internal non- statutory work, and external sales. The table below describes each category. 

Statutory work 
o The provision of data reports and information for senior management teams 

across the Housing, Adults and Children’s social care departments and Public 

Health, coupled with statutory reporting to central government which, following 

the disaggregation of a shared services function should now be referred to as 

core business activity.

Internal non- statutory work 

Page 23



6 | P a g e

Pri
ori
tie
s 
rati
on
ale 

3.1

4. 

Giv

en the current resourcing and size of the team the three work areas are resourced by the team on 

a priority basis, for the following reasons:

 First priority: Internal statutory work is the top priority given its a statutory duty, but also 

because of risks associated with non-compliance.  For example, the lack of a statutory return 

could result in a low Ofsted grade which would result in considerable cost and reputational 

damage to the Council.

 Second priority: Once internal statutory work is resourced, the team seeks opportunities to 

progress and develop internal non-statutory work, because of the great financial and social 

value available to Hammersmith and Fulham Council.

 Third priority: External sales require a significant amount of time and resource and it is 

more challenging to achieve financial benefits from sales than internal savings initiatives 

and there is no direct social benefit to residents in Hammersmith and Fulham Council, only 

indirect via the financial benefits.

Strengths 

3.15. This final section concludes the paper by summarising the key benefits for residents -  

 Savings - Internal non- statutory work delivering savings has been the success in the portfolio. 

This includes developing a software solution to identify households claiming single person 

council tax discount (Single Person Discount). These financial benefits can be re-invested into 

services for residents. 

 Predictive value - it increases the predictive capacity of service directorates, enabling 

significant cost avoidance and improved practice, all of which benefits residents.  

 Helps residents - Product innovation can help meet resident’s needs. For example, predictive 

modelling for children at risk of entering care enables targeted preventative interventions. 

o Savings - The development of solutions to improve service areas across the 

Council and deliver social and financial benefits including cost avoidance and 

savings where applicable. 

o Non- savings - Internal non- statutory reporting that do not deliver savings.  

External Sales 
o Solutions developed for Hammersmith and Fulham Council to be commoditised 

to generate a net financial return through sales transactions with other Local 

Authorities. This area of work is routinely referred to as Business Intelligence 

sales but may also include Management Information sales.

Page 24



7 | P a g e

 Achieves sales - Other councils have purchased Hammersmith and Fulham Council’s 

products and services and found them helpful. Sales revenue can be re-invested into services 

for residents. 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1. None 

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 No financial implications.

7. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 

7.1. None

8. COMMERCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. None   

9. IT IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. None 

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

None 

LIST OF APPENDICES 
None

Page 25



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham

PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM
POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE

16 October 2018

HUMAN RESOURCES UPDATE

Report of the Director for Corporate Services – Mark Grimley

Open Report

Classification: For Policy and Accountability Review and Comment
Key Decision:  No

Consultation
Consultation is not required as this is an overview for consideration by the PAC. 

Wards Affected: None

Accountable Director: Mark Grimley, Director of Corporate Services

Report Author: 
Carole Yorrick, Head of Human 
Resources
Tina Dempsey, Head of People & 
Talent

Contact Details:
E-mail: carol.yorrick@lbhf.gov.uk 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. This report covers matters concerned with the Our People strategy, key 
workforce areas of interest and the implementation of the replacement to the 
BT Agresso HR and payroll system.

1.2. The report provides information to the PAC to help form their views of key 
areas of interest over the municipal year to aid their scrutiny of the 
management of the workforce. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7

mailto:carol.yorrick@lbhf.gov.uk


2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1. The PAC are requested to note the report and request further information that 
may be of interest to them for further scrutiny or explanation by:

2.1.1. Noting the Council’s workforce strategy, Our People
2.1.2. Noting the current overview of the workforce and current 

activities
2.1.3. Noting the progress towards the implementation of a new HR 

and payroll system through the Hampshire Integrated Business 
Centre (IBC)

2.1.4. Request that the results of the staff survey and the action plan 
are considered at the next available PAC meeting

2.1.5. Consider any other areas for further detail at future PAC 
meetings.

3. INTRODUCTION 

3.1 The council is one of the major employers within the borough and runs over 
250 different types of services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. 

3.2 With around 2,000 assignments (employees and contractors) we are a large 
and complex organisation, working in a heavily regulated environment and 
subject to intense scrutiny by inspection regimes, ombudsman offices and our 
residents and businesses. 

3.3 In May 2018, we adopted a new strategy for creating our framework for 
people management through Our People. This strategy sets out the type of 
organisation we aspire to be and the areas of focus for the next few years to 
achieve this.  It is a highly ambitious strategy and makes a bold statement of 
intent to ‘create a confident, capable, and creative workforce to deliver our 
[the council’s] Vision and to be the best council in the country within five 
years. 

3.4 The workforce has seen significant structural change over the past 12 months 
as we have moved away from the shared services with neighbouring 
boroughs.  This has affected nearly half of the workforce. 

3.5 Over the next year, we are planning for further structural change with 
additional services moving directly back to the borough.  At the same time 
plans are in place to implement and new finance, HR, and payroll system, 
replace the entire ICT asset base with new technology and ways of working, 
and decant services to enable the demolition of the Town Hall extension, 
refurbishment of the Town Hall and the regeneration of West King Street.  
This is a significant change programme. 

Page 27



3.6 At the same time, we are seeking to introduce a comprehensive new talent 
and development package.  Whilst the council faces a continued and tougher 
financial challenge from the budget settlement, we need to maintain and 
improve services through tighter financial planning, better workforce 
management and increased productivity – focussing on the quality of services 
provided to residents whilst maintaining the commitment to be ruthlessly 
financially efficient to avoid the increase in charges for services that other 
boroughs have been making. Our overall offer for our employees needs to 
better consider modern reward practises and provide a more comprehensive 
package of benefits related to what’s important for the workforce of the future.

3.7 We are also operating in a highly competitive market for talent, experience 
and those entering the job market with potential.   West London is a very 
attractive area for both corporates and smaller start up organisations.  We are 
competing to attract talent against this exciting backdrop, at the same time 
specific professional areas, particularly social work and housing are in high 
demand across the sub-region and London-wide area.  

4. OUR STRATEGY 

4.1 Following the adoption of the council’s Vision, we have taken the opportunity 
to align our people strategy to the five priorities for the council. We developed 
and adopted a new people strategy that sets out:

 A bold overarching statement to ‘create a confident, confident, capable 
and creative workforce to deliver our Vision and to be the best council 
in the country within five years. 

 A statement of who we are, our personality as a council.
 Our areas of focus
 What success looks like

4.2 Behind this, we have adopted an internal employer brand to emphasis 
activities and opportunities as they are connected to the people strategy.  

Who we are

4.3 As part of the strategy, we aim to create a common experience and approach 
to all of our work.  This is set out in the section ‘Who we are’.  The section 
describes the four common areas that should define how our employees work 
in their daily lives.  It reflects the Vision of the council.  We are:

 Fair: we treat everyone with compassion, dignity, and fairness. We 
value the views of others and promote benefits and opportunities for all. 

 Caring: We care about our borough and doing things well.  We focus on 
standards and continuous improvement: learning from our mistakes 
and celebrating success. 

 Collaborators: We work together for a better society.  We work with our 
residents, businesses, schools, third sector and others for better 
outcomes for everyone.

Page 28



 Driven: We will only settle for the very best.  We seek to continually 
improve and put our residents, customers, and businesses at the heart 
of everything we do. 

4.4 We can embed these through multiple routes including using these 
behaviours to attract and recruit new people to the organisation, use in 
performance management conversations, embedding these behaviours in our 
formal policies and procedures, as well as using them to help describe how 
we design and deliver services. 

Our focus

4.5 The strategy sets out for key areas for us to focus our efforts and group our 
activity.  Connected our activities and offer to these areas allows employees 
to understand why we are doing things, and how they fit into the overall 
strategy so it feels more real than normal workforce strategies. The four areas 
for our focus are: 

Employee Experience: We will focus on creating a comprehensive new 
offer for our employees to enhance their experience at work.   At the heart 
of our strategy is the voice and views of our employees.  Employees who 
speak highly of the organisation they belong too are more likely to be 
highly motivated, stay longer, be positive advocates for others to join and 
deliver better customer service. 

Employee development:  We are creating new, exciting opportunities for 
personal and professional development.  Our workforce has told us this is 
important to them – they want more opportunities to learn, grow and 
progress.  There is a perception that opportunities are not open for our 
existing employees. 

Coaching and leadership: We want to build a new culture of confident 
leaders and shift our focus from directing and managing to growing and 
coaching individuals. 

Organisational development: we want to focus on creating a new type 
of culture that allows us to be more ready for change and innovation and 
where people love the place they work. 

4.6 Behind each of these areas, there is a programme of work with some ‘set 
pieces’ (like the recent Our Stars Awards, recognising the best of our 
employees and long-service celebration), to new frameworks for management 
and leadership development.  A new talent programme to grow 
apprenticeships, career development routes, professional development, and 
essential skills.  

4.7 In October 2018, the council will be conducting the first staff survey since 
2016.  This is an important baseline for the people strategy as it provides us 
with information that will help us prioritise our key interventions. 

Page 29



4.8 The survey is a 3-year partnership with the Best Companies groups, who 
provide the insight and evaluation of ‘The Sunday Times Best Companies to 
Work’ for standard.  This has been chosen for their expertise and insight, as 
well as their complex modelling of what matters to staff.  There are eight inter-
connected areas covered by the survey:

(Copyright: Best Companies Limited) 

4.9 In addition to the survey responses, the company analysis key drivers, and 
constraints from the responses of staff.  They then use this to assist the council 
in understanding more scientifically the actions needed to improve staff 
perceptions, engagement and motivation. 

4.10 The survey is then the basis for the second stage of our management 
development programme (the first being World Class Manager, see section 7 
below).   Using the MC3 programme from the survey, we can work with 
managers to understand better their role in improving the overall employee 
experience.  This will impact our culture, performance, and productivity as well 
as our attraction and retention rates across all four areas of focus in the Our 
People strategy. 

4.11 The survey is accredited, however as this is the first year the council will not 
seek accreditation. By the end of the strategy, the council aims to be the 
highest performing local government body in the survey, and one of the highest 
public service organisations. 

Page 30



5. KEY WORKFORCE INFORMATION 

Workforce numbers

5.1 At the end of September 2018, the council employed 1,960 individuals (1,755 
full time equivalent roles). This number has remained relatively static over 
previous years. 

 

5.2 The total workforce bill in 2018/19 is projected to be £100,901 – including 
salaries, on costs and agency usage. This is a £4million reduction since 
2015/16.  However, the percentage of the council’s expenditure in relation to 
workforce costs on the General Fund has risen from workforce costs being 
57% of the council’s expenditure in 2015/16 to 78.5% in 2018/19. 

5.3 There has been a marked increase in the use of agency staff in this time.  In 
2015/16 agency spend was £16.4 million (15.7% of workforce costs) to a 
projected £19.5m in 2018 (19.2%).  There are a few reasons for this including: 

i. Market forces: difficulty in recruitment in social care, housing, and 
technical roles in particular

ii. Council systems: the process to recruit is too slow and manual, 
resulting in a poor candidate experience and overly administrative for 
managers.  Whilst the council has utilised the BT Agresso reserves to 
fund additional administration, the system and process itself has 
proved too cumbersome.  A new system is being introduced as part of 
the Hampshire IBC system in December 2018.

iii. Workforce changes: the rapid disaggregation of shared services 
(Moving On) resulted in a number of key vacancies from the 
establishment of sovereign services.  Temporary resourcing 
requirements were increased.

iv. Increase in project work: a number of major projects, including the BT 
Agresso exit to Hampshire, King Street Regeneration, Moving On and 
the desktop strategy (Techtonic) has created a demand for short-term 
assignments. 

5.4 Nonetheless, the Director of Corporate Services is overseeing a planned 
reduction in agency usage by the end of the financial year. 

5.5 In the year to September 2018, employee turnover was 17.8%.  This remains a 
concern and we will be undertaking a project to capture more accurately the 
reasons for people leaving the organisation.   Turnover can be costly resulting 
in an increase in agency use, the cost of recruitment and induction of new staff 
and the loss of organsiational memory.  The latest staff survey will also provide 
an insight about the reasons people consider leaving the organisation. 

Page 31



5.6 Sickness absence has been stable for a number of years, although it is 
expected that there has been an under-reporting of sickness absence due to 
the complexity of the Agresso system. At present sickness absence represents 
2.1% (5 days per FTE) loss in productivity.  This is average for organisations of 
similar size and for the sector. 

5.7 Key trends around stress and mental health are increasing, alongside longer-
term conditions. Short-term absence is less of a concern.  The council is 
developing a revised health and wellbeing plan to meet the standards of the 
Healthy Workplace Charter, this includes re-providing our occupational health 
services to focus more on prevention and education.  An organisational 
commitment to wellbeing is also a key motivator and benefit for employees. 

5.8 Employee case management is a challenge with a greater proportion of formal 
procedures (disciplinary, grievances etc) undertaken than would be expected in 
the organisation.  This is being kept under review and new case management 
arrangements have been put in place to seek earlier, informal resolution.  

5.9 This has included tackling a number of long-term suspensions and a change in 
our risk appetite, working with employment solicitors in legal services. 
Suspensions and the length of suspensions has decreased rapidly.  On each 
occasion of a suspension, a dedicated team is put in place to ensure a rapid 
investigation and hearing (if required) takes place to avoid lengthy periods of 
suspension.  

5.10 Where a suspension takes place related to fraudulent activity alerted by the 
council’s anti-fraud team, the hearing date is set on the day of the suspension.  
This has significantly reduced the number of days of suspension that have 
resulted in dismissal for gross misconduct, ensuring the council does not retain 
individuals on the payroll where fraudulent activity has been proved.

5.11 Having said this, the focus of effort is being shifted in terms of resources to 
focus on the vast majority of employees who work had without any issues. 

5.12 We are currently planning to refresh our employee information related to 
equalties and diversity.  We have poor data and it is vital to our commitment to 
be a fair employer that we understand in more depth how we are meeting our 
commitment to fulfill the potential of all employees without barriers. 

5.13 We already understand through stautory reporting our gender pay gap is 3.8 
per cent between male and female roles.  This is driven predominantly be less 
representation of females in senior roles, and a greater proportion of females in 
lower graded and part-time roles. In 2017/18 we introduced a programme 
targetted at female employees to focus on their career development.  We will 
run a similar programme in 2019. 

5.14 The representation of BME employees at management levels will be an area of 
focus. In coming years as part of our talent management programme. 

Page 32



5.15 We have poor information in relation to disability, particularly mental health 
conditions.  This is an area for improvement and will inform our wellbeing 
strategy. 

5.16 The council has signed the Armed Forces Covenant and has a designated 
Councillor who leads on ensuring we meet our commitments to those in the 
armed forces and their families. 

5.17 The council will shortly sign the Dying to Work pledge, a campaign led by the 
Trade Unions Congress to protect workers with terminal conditions from being 
dismissed from work.  As a compassionate council, and a fair employer, we are 
committed to being there for our employees when they need us most. 

Page 33



6. HR & PAYROLL SYSTEMS 

6.1 In September 2017, the Cabinet agreed to move to HR, Payroll and Finance 
services currently provided by BT to a public to public partnership led by 
Hampshire County Council (HCC) using the SAP platform.

6.2 This is a tried and tested system used by c.85,000 public sector users and 
LBHF will adopt it and its associated processes. This means LBHF will need to 
change some of the ways it works to accommodate the new system.

6.3 LBHF have worked closely with HCC, Deloitte (their onboarding partner) and 
BT to ensure all stakeholders are committed to a successful outcome.

6.4 Westminster City Council and Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea are 
also moving to the Hampshire solution and whilst our programmes are 
separate, there is some co-operation on shared matters such as data.  Current 
go live dates align which is advantageous from the point of view of exiting BT, 
downloading data and using shared HCC resources.  However, should the 
timetable change, LBHF is fully prepared for a solo go live process.

6.5 This report summarises the progress made and the key activities scheduled     
between now and go live of the new system.  

6.6 The new IBC system build was completed in May and is well along the cycle 
of testing to ensure it meets LBHF’s requirements.

6.7 Business deployment and change management activities have ramped up 
and following User Acceptance Testing there will be a number of opportunities 
to try out the IBC system during drop-in sessions in October and November.

6.8 We gave formal notice to BT on 30 August 2018 to terminate the shared 
services contract (from the master contract of Westminster City Council). This 
puts us on a go live trajectory of 1st December 2018 with a release to the 
organisation on Monday 3rd December. 

6.9 A separate exit workstream from the BT system and archiving is in place 
within the council. 

Page 34



Summary of progress

6.10 The design and build of the system was completed in May 2018. A testing 
strategy and approach was written and approved at board and testing of the 
system included the following stages:

 Unit testing: validates that individual functions are configured and/or 
developed to appropriately translate technical and functional 
requirements (successfully completed)

 System Integration Testing (SIT): there are 2 cycles of SIT: validates a 
set of business processes to ensure that the system functions as 
expected when the elements are integrated together i.e. end to end 
processes, interfaces, middleware, reports (successfully completed)

 Comparison payroll runs (CR): there are 6 comparison payrolls (4 
intensive monthly payroll cycles during test phase and two Comparison 
payroll cycles during cutover): recreating the payroll run and comparing 
the Agresso and SAP payrolls to ensure that SAP is running correctly

 User Acceptance Testing (UAT): end-to-end process testing to verify that 
the implemented solution satisfies business requirements (successfully 
completed).

6.11 We have completed SIT and UAT and satisfied the pre-determined entry/exit 
criteria.

6.12 Finance Data loads were completed with a 0.5% error rate (note manual loads 
at LBHF have had a greater success rate than bi-borough).  

6.13 The payroll loads and full organisational management (OM) structures have 
loaded for sovereign borough and also integrated OM for cross borough 
services.  This structure has been built from scratch and is a key part of 
ensuring that workflows and approvals within the system work correctly.  

6.14 We have completed successfully the key tasks of loading the sovereign 
organisation structure data and integrated data for services delivered with 
RBKC, the finance data and the full data set for payroll CR3 and UAT.

6.15 User feedback has been positive confirming the ease of use, fit for purpose 
and a great improvement on Agresso.

6.16 We have a plan for data remediation and loading prior to comparison payroll 
run 4 (CR4) which will be followed by two more comparison runs to ensure the 
data for pay is as accurate as possible. 

6.17 A cutover strategy and plan is in place for transitioning from the LBHF’s 
legacy system and processes to HCC’s shared services operation (and 
related systems and processes.  Cutover is the structured approach for 
managing the transition of people, processes and technology from the existing 
ways of working to new ways of working and adoption of the IBC services.  

6.18 Cutover includes applying the new code, configuration and functionality to IBC 
systems; migrating all data from legacy systems ensuring it is cleansed and 

Page 35



validated to ensure its integrity; ensuring services are fully prepared for 
transition to the IBC; and operational readiness meaning that the IBC are 
ready to deliver services from go-live day.

6.19 A specific strand for business deployment (change management and 
readiness) has worked with over 200 subject matter experts and line of 
business users to design, build, and test the systems.  This is a significant 
contribution from across the organisation to ensure front line users have had 
the opportunity to test the system and participate in the change.  

6.20 We have also established a network of 120 key business users to act as 
change advocates, cascading key information, timetables, and activities into 
their teams. 

7. OTHER SIGNIFICANT AREAS OF ACTIVITY 

Moving On: A move from Shared Services with RB Kensington & Chelsea / 
Westminster City Council 

7.1 The council has moved away from shared service arrangements with RBKC and 
WCC for a number of services in adult and children’s social care and legal 
services. 

7.2 The new sovereign structures for the Hammersmith and Fulham went live on 
1st  April 2018 following a consultation which commenced in November 2017 
and concluded in January 2018. This resulted in the creation of sovereign 
Children’s and Adults Directorates During the consultation It was established 
that many services which were mainly operational would directly lift and drop 
into the new directorates with the staff not affected. 

7.3 Legal Services were disaggregated following a proposal by the tri-borough 
management team to transfer the services to a third party.  LBHF concluded 
that it is in the best interests of the service to retain direct control of our legal 
advice. 

 
7.4 However, it was established that some services, would need to be reorganised 

particularly to establish new directorate leadership teams. In addition, a new 
directorate, Public Service Reform was established and took upon many of the 
commissioning functions previously performed by the Tri-borough shared 
services as well as other services.  

 
7.5 During the consultation it was identified that there were 59 staff who where are 

risk of redundancy. All individuals were directly consulted with and considered 
for alternative positions within the new structures as well as offered 
opportunities to apply for any new posts.  After the implementation 10 staff were 
made redundant as it was not possible to offer suitable alternative posts. 

 

Page 36



7.6 In addition, there was a substantial level of recruitment required to form new 
sovereign teams, particularly within Children’s Services as new sovereign 
functions were established, these specifically were around Special Education 
Needs and Disabilities. Children’s Finance and Education. As a consequence, 
there was a period of intense recruitment has culminated in the appointment of 
34 staff.

7.7 The programme of change was particularly successful in retaining our existing 
staff and attracting new talent to the organisation.  The timings of the 
consultation in the other boroughs proposed as risk around the loss of key staff, 
however that didn’t materialise due to the change management, the council’s 
Vision and roadshows held with staff and our approach to communication and 
engagement. 

7.8 In 2019, we will consider further a move to bring back other services that 
continue to be shared.

7.9 In light of the move away from BT Agresso, the shared HR functions with RBKC 
will be ended.  There is already a functional split between the boroughs and the 
remaining resources for residual payroll and pensions will remain the only 
shared service.  Occupational health services have already been split. 

7.10 Other areas that remain shared include highways, parks, environment health, 
regulatory services and some joint commissioning functions for social care will 
be reviewed. 

Unified Reward

7.11 The council last reviewed our pay and reward offer in 2009.  This was primarily 
in response to risks related to equal pay across public services and a particular 
focus on local government.  

7.12 Most of council employees follow the Green Book, national terms and conditions 
of service.  The Green Book was last redrafted in 1997, with minor amendments 
related to legislative changes since then. 

7.13 The council is undertaking a systemic review of our pay, reward, performance 
management and organisational design under the programme of Unified 
Reward.  The current scope is still being determined although it is anticipated 
that this will seek to modernise employment practise. 

7.14 Key areas that the programme will seek to address will be:

Pay and grading: our current structures are being modified by national 
agreement in 2019.  We will have to realign our pay structures to the national 
model.  At the same time, lower grades have been eroded by the London Living 
Wage (LLW) and a review of the impact of the LLW on our overall pay structure 
will need to consider the longer-term implications. 

Page 37



Performance: there are several performance related pay (PRP) (bonus 
schemes) in operation within the council.  These are not universally applied and 
the link between PRP and performance is not strong – this was previously 
reviewed by the Finance PAC. 

Workforce Planning: Our use of agency staff is partly driven by poor systems 
(to be replaced as part of the Hampshire IBC solution) and poor workforce 
planning and design.  We want to have longer-term planning linked to an overall 
target operating model to ensure that we plan for skills and succession to reduce 
the need for external recruitment and short-term assignments.  We should also 
be considering the impact of new ways of working, IT skills and automation on 
the workforce.  Links between health and social care need to be considered for 
the future, alongside new skills and professions emerging from technology and 
legislative advancements. 

Policies and procedures: Our policy framework requires a significant overhaul 
to match more closely to our ambition set out in the Our People strategy.  The 
tone and approach of the policies and procedures are more restrictive and 
directive, removing discretion of managers to act fast and take appropriate 
decisions.  Very often the policies are barriers to resolving issues rather than 
focussing on the early resolution of issues rather than a reactive slow process 
in response. 

7.15 We are in th early stages of defining the extent of the programme.  We will 
ensure that our trade union colleagues and employees are involved in the 
design and consultation of our proposals.  At the same time, some contractual 
elements, where changes are proposed, will require a formal negotiation and 
agreement with the trade unions. 

World Class Manager Programme

7.16 As part of our commitment to improve the consistency and skills across our front-
line managers, the council is creating a comprehensive leadership and 
management programme.  The first two elements of this are a basic skills 
development course, adopted from the World Class Manager programme used 
by many multinationals. 

7.17 This focuses on 12 key modules for basic skills, like good performance 
conversations, setting standards and goals, productive team meeting, modern 
management practise etc.  Alongside this, we are facilitating action learning sets 
to build a management cohort who can better support each other.  In addition, we 
are developing an in-house coaching model to support our ambition to use 
managers as coaches to our staff. 

7.18 An evaluation of the first wave of activity will be undertaken in February 2019. 

7.19 A wider framework for leadership and management development will be 
developed by November 2018. 

Page 38



Desktop Strategy 

7.20 The council’s current technology platform is performing poorly.  In the last staff 
survey the technology was a major source of frustration for employees meaning 
they had slow systems and were unable to work flexibly.  The roll out of Office365 
online versions is hampered by the desktop technology and our bandwidth. 

7.21 A major investment in technology devices to allow for faster, more reliable 
systems alongside more flexible working options and online collaboration will be 
a significant step forward. 

7.22 A change management programme is in place to look at the potential impact in 
terms of new styles of management (to account for more flexible arrangements 
for working and remote working teams).  Training is a key element to ensure 
people are familiar with, use and adopt the technology available including mobile 
working, electronic documentation, unified communications tool and collaboration 
tools. 

7.23 The desktop strategy will affect almost all employees. 

King Street Regeneration

7.24 The regeneration proposals for West King Street will require the council to decant 
from the Town Hall Extension and the Town Hall during the works.  This will affect 
around 1,000 employees. 

7.25 Again, in the 2016 staff survey, the working environment was one of the lowest 
satisfaction scores for employees. 

7.26 We are working up proposals for a decant in the spring to modernised offices.  
This requires a major change programme to support the decant to ensure we only 
move what is needed (to reduce cost and floor space requirements) and to 
implement shared desk spaces and more collaborative spaces. 

Page 39



8. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT

No. Description of
Background Papers

Name/Ext of holder of 
file/copy

Department/
Location

1 Our Vision https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites
/default/files/section_attach
ments/260_59_hf_vision_a4
_booklet_rev8.pdf 

Internet

2 Pay Policy Statement http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/
ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=
114&MId=5614 (ITEM 6.4 of 
the Annual Budget Setting 
Council Meeting)

Internet 

3 Our People https://officesharedservice.s
harepoint.com/sites/intranet/
hf-
hr/Intranet%20Documents/H
&F%20Our%20People.pdf#s
earch=people%20strategy 

Intranet

4 Gender Pay Reporting http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/
documents/s95863/171101
%20Finance%20PAC%20G
ender%20Pay%20final.pdf 

Internet

Page 40

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=114&MId=5614
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=114&MId=5614
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=114&MId=5614
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Intranet%20Documents/H&F%20Our%20People.pdf#search=people%20strategy
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Intranet%20Documents/H&F%20Our%20People.pdf#search=people%20strategy
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Intranet%20Documents/H&F%20Our%20People.pdf#search=people%20strategy
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Intranet%20Documents/H&F%20Our%20People.pdf#search=people%20strategy
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Intranet%20Documents/H&F%20Our%20People.pdf#search=people%20strategy
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Intranet%20Documents/H&F%20Our%20People.pdf#search=people%20strategy
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s95863/171101%20Finance%20PAC%20Gender%20Pay%20final.pdf
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s95863/171101%20Finance%20PAC%20Gender%20Pay%20final.pdf
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s95863/171101%20Finance%20PAC%20Gender%20Pay%20final.pdf
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s95863/171101%20Finance%20PAC%20Gender%20Pay%20final.pdf

	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Progress update on work following the Disabled People's Commission report
	6 Business Intelligence and Management Information Update
	7 HR Update - Our People strategy and implementation of a new HR and payroll system

